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Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements

Board of Trustees
Agua Dulce Independent School District
P.O. Box 250
Agua Dulce, Texas 78330-0250

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Agua Dulce independent School District as of and for the year
ended August 31, 2008, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Agua Dulce Independent School District's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Agua Dulce Independent School District as of August 31, 2008, and the respective changes In financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 3,
2008. on our consideration of Agua Dulce Independent School District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

5934 5. Staples, Suite 201 Corpus Christi, Texas 78413
Phone: (361) 993-1000 Fax. (361) 991-2880 www.ciow1cid-qc.com

Members of the American Institute and Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants

http://www.ciow1cid-qc.com


The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary comparison information identified as Required
Supplementary Information in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements which collectively
comprise the Agua Dulce Independent School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule
of expenditures of federal awards required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits

of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and the combining financial statements
and supporting schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This information, except for that portion marked
"unaudited" on which we express no opinion, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Respectfully sub itted,

G land, Strealy, Morales Co., PLLC

January 3, 2009



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of Agua Dulce Independent School District's annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis
of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008. Please read it in conjunction with
the District's financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
• The District's total combined net assets were $2,797,404 at August 31, 2008.

• During the year, the District's expenses were $409,198 less than the $5,204,537 generated in taxes and other
revenues for governmental activities.

• The general fund reported a fund balance this year of $888,898 an increase of $38,961 over 2007 ending fund
balance. The district experienced a turnover of experienced teachers and administrator. The majority of the
new hires were first and second year teachers, therefore the salaries for the district were reduced.

• The District did not issue any debt during 2008_

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts—managements discussion and
analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, and required
supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the District:

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements
that provide both long-term and short-term information about the
District's overall financial status.

• The remaining statements are fund frnanclal statements that focus
on individual parts of the government, reporting the Districts
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

• The governmental funds statements tell how general government
services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for
future spending.. .

• Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial
relationships in which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for
the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the
information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The
statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information
that further explains and supports the information in the financial
statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report
are arranged and related to one another.

Figure A-IF, Required Components of
the District's Annual Financial Report
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Figure A-2 summarizes the major
features of the District's financial
statements, including the portion of
the District government they cover
and the types of information they
contain. The remainder of this
overview section of management's
discussion and analysis explains the
structure and contents of each of the
statements.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements
report information about the District
as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by
private-sector companies. The
statement of net assets includes all
o€ the government's assets and
liabilities. All of the current year's
revenues and expenses are

accounted for in the statement of
activities regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

Figure A-2- Major Features of the District's Government wide and Fund Financial Statements
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The two government-wide
statements report the District's net assets and how they have changed. Net  assets—the difference between the
District's . assets and liabilities—is one way to measure the District's financial health or positiion.

n Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

• To assess the overall health of the District, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as
changes in the District's tax base.

The government-wide financial statements of the District include the Governmental activities. Most of the District's
basic services are included here, such as instruction, extracurricular activities, curriculum and staff development,
health services, and general administration. Property taxes and grants finance most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds—not the
District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the District uses to keep track.of specific sources of funding
and spending For particular purposes.

• Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

n The Board of Trustees establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to
show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants.

The District has 2 kinds of funds:

Governmental funds—Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on
(1) how cash • and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements
provide a detailed sihort tern view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. Because this information
does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional
information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explain the
relationship (or differences) between them.



• Fiduciary fund3-The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds. It is also responsible for other
assets that-because of a trust arrangement-can be used only for the trust bene ficiaries, The District is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes, All of
the District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiducia ry net assets and a statement of
changes in fiducia ry net assets. We exclude these activities from the District's government-wide financial
statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net assets. The Dist rict's combined net assets we re approximately $2,797,404 at August 31, 2008. (See Table A-1).

Table A-1
Agua Dulce Independent School District's Net Assets

(actual dollars)

Governmental
Activities

2008 2007

Total
Change

2008-2007

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Property Taxes Receivable (Net)
Due from other governments
Other current assets

Total current assets;
Noncurrent assets:
Land

Buildings, Furniture & Equipment

Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and

Accred liabilities
Due to Other Governments
Deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:

Bonds Payable
Total Liabilities

$ 1,167,422 $ 560,176
62,389 64,569

500,945 697,264
11,490

1,742,246 1,322,009

52,019 52,019
4,108,487 4,512,904

4,160,506 4,564,923

5^ 90̂ 5,886,932

728,657 86,969
151,615 90,267
53,764 4,062

155,000 155,000
489,036 336,298

2,616,312 2,759,302
3,105.348 3,095,600

607,246
(2,180)

(196,319)
11,490

420,237

0
(404,417)

(404,417•)
15,820

41,688
61,348
49,702

0
152,738

(142,990)
9,748

Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

1,540,050
274,626
982 726

$ 2.797.404

1,650,621
230,765
909,946

$ 2.791.332

(110,571)
43,863
72,780

Changes In net assets. The District's total revenues were $5,204,537. A significant po rtion, 30 percent, of the
District's revenue comes from taxes. The remainder comes from state and federal programs, investment earnings,
charges for services, and miscellaneous other services.



Governmental Activities

Table A-2
Changes In Agua Dulce Independent School District's Net Assets

(in actual dollars)

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions

General Revenues
Property Taxes
State Aid - Formula
Investment Earnings
Other

Total Revenues

Instruction
Instructional Resources and

Media Services
Curriculum 0ev. And

Instructional Staff 0ev.
Instructional Leadership
School Leadership
Guidance, Counseling and

Evaluation Services
Health Services
Student (Pupil) Transportation
Food Services
Cunicuiar/Extracurricular Activities
General Administration
Plant Maintenance & Oper.
Security and Monitoring Services
Data Processing Services
Debt Service
Community Service
Payments Related to Shared Service
Arrangements

Governmental
Activities

2008 2007

$ 206,096 $ 102,609
1,841,336 2,321,484

1.543,553 1,337,491
1,516,338 1,548,789

56,981 279
40,235 42,503

5,204,537 5,353,155

2,273,072 2,453,828

23,785 22,004

34,045 7,979
6,508 5,954

192.768 184,375

49,783 87,043
29,260 1,040

123,258 107,826
150,540 142,286
262,863 270,601
259,748 293,867
353,84$ 347,721
24,552
13,075 3,373

141,003 9,039
0 135,813

860,233 1,185,984

Total
Change

2008-2007

103,487
(480,148)

206,062
(32,453)
56,702
(2,268)

(148,618)

(180,756)

1,781

26,066
554

8.393

(37, )
25,220
15,432
8,254

(7,738)
(34.121)

6,127
24,552

9,702
131,964

(135,813)

(325,751)

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

Net Assets Ending

4,795,339

409,198
2,791,333
(403,127)

$ 2,797,404

5,258,733

94,422
2,550,876

146,034

$ 2,791,332,

(463,394)

314,776
240,457

(549,161)

6,072

Table A-3 presents the cost of each of the District's largest functions as well as each function's net cost (total cost
less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was funded by state
revenues as well as local tax dollars.

• The cost of all governmental activities this year was $4,795,339.

• However, the amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes was $1,543,553.

• Some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs $206,096, or

• By operating grants and contributions $1,841,336.

Ir1



Table A-3
Net Cost of Selected District Functions and WADA

(in actual dolar)

Instruction
School Leadership
Food Service
General Administration
Plant Maintenance & Operations
Payments Related to Shared Service

Arrangements

Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services % Change Services % Change

2008 2007 2008 2007

$ 2,273,072 $ 2,453,828 -7.37% $ 1,416,295 $ 1,470,179 -3.67%

192,768 184,375 4.55% 174,392 171,728 1.55%

150,540 142,286 5.80% 33,475 15,435 116.88%

259,746 293,867 -11.61% 234,986 273,710 -14.15%

353,848 347,721 1.76% 319,990 323,870 -1.20%

860233 1,185,984 -27.47% 51,776 62,454 -17.10%

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

Revenues from governmental fund types totaled $5,025,122 a decrease of 8.1% over the preceding year
($5.470,130).

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised its budget. Even with these adjustments, actual expenditures were
$268,382 below final budget amounts. The district budgeted major repairs, however not all the repairs were
addressed. The district delayed some repairs until the tax roll back election was held.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2008 the District had invested $4,160,506 in a broad range of capital assets, including land, equipment,
buildings, and vehicles. (See Table A-4.) This amount represents a net decrease (including additions and
deductions) of $ 404,417.

Table A-4
Districts Capital Assets

(in actual daiars)

Governmental
lvli Lea Total

2007 Additions Deletions 2008

Land
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and Vehicles
Totals at historical cost

Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets

$ 52,019 $ $ $ 52,019
6,153,085 6,153,085

693,910 107,014 300,505 500,419
6,899,014 107,014 300,505 6,705,523

2,334,091 108,304 (102,622) 2,545,017
$	4,564,923 $ (1,290) $ 403.127 $ 4,160,506

The district disposed of a car and maintenance pickup. In addition RCI, district's contracted fixed asset management
company, re-calculated the district fix asset cost based on updated information.

8



Long Term Debt

At year-end the District had $2,620,465 In bonds outstanding as shown in Table A-5. More detailed information about
the District debt is presented in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Table A-5
District's Long Term Debt

(in actual dollars)

Governmental
Activities

2008 2007

Bonds Payable $ 2,620,465 $ 2,621.263
Accretion 150.847 293.039

$ 2,771,312 $ 2,914,302

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

• The District finished 2007-2008 with a fund balance of $889,898 in the general fund. This being an increase
of $38.961 over the previous year. Total revenues in the general fund were $3,027,032 with total
expenditures of $2,953,078.

• The district has a bonded indebtedness of $2,620,465. Bond payments are made each year in a timely
manner in February and August.

• For 2007-2008, the assessed value of the district for school tax purposes was $105,068,194. The M&O tax
rate was set at $1.047 and the I&S tax rate at .2129.

• Appraisal value used for the 2008-2009 budget preparation will increase to $118,651,814.

• General operating expenses for the 2008-2009 budget decreased by $106,960 due to new teachers and
• lower salaries.

• The District's 2009 refined averaged daily attendance is expected to remain stable during 2008-2009. The
general operating fund spending per student is expected to remain about the same.

• The district has actively sought and will continue to seek funding from other sources,

• These indicators were taken into account when adopting the general fund budget for 2008-2009.

• The District is seeking information on distance learning, dual credit classes and credit advancement. Credit
recovery software has already been added to the budget.

• If these estimates are realized, the District's budgetary general fund balance is expected to remain stable
unless additional monies are used on improvement and capital projects.

• The district is preparing to present the voters with a bond election to upgrade existing roofs, plumbing,
security, as well as possible expansion of the cafeteria facility.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional financial Information, contact the District's Business Services
Department.
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EXHIBIT A-1
AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NETASSETS
AUGUST 31, 2008

Data
Control Governmental
Codes Activities

ASSETS:
1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,167,422
1225 Property Taxes Receivable (Net) 62,389
1240 Due from Other Governments 500,945
1267 - Due from Fiduciary 11,490

Capital Assets:

1510 Land 52,019
1529 Buildings and Improvements, Net 3,916,506
1530 Furniture and Equipment, Net 191,981
1000 Total Assets 5,902,752

LIABILITIES:
2110 Accounts Payable 44,980
2165 Accrued Liabilities 83,677
2180 Due to Other Governments 151,615
2300 Unearned Revenue 53,764

Noncurrent Liabilities:
2501 Due Within One Year 155,000
2502 Due in More Than One Year 2,616,312
2000 Total Liabilities 3.105.348

10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



87,954
1,304
421
196

10.971
2,833
1,495
5.615

30,616
24,250
14,783
20,167
1,397
744

3.350
206.496

$ 206,096

EXHIBIT 5-1

AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OFACTIVITFES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31. 2008

Data
Control
Codes Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities:
11 Instruction
12 Instructional Resources and Media Services
13 Curriculum and Staff Development
21 fnstruCtional Leadership
23 School Leadership
31 Guidance, Counseling, & Evaluation Services
33 Health Services
34 Student Transportation
35 Food Service
38 Cocurricular/Extracurrfcufar A ctivltles
41 General Administration
51 Plant Maintenance and Operations
52 Security and Monitoring Services
53 Data Processing Services
72 Interest on Long-term Coebt
73 Bond Issuance Costs and Fees
93 Payments Related to Shared Services Arrangements
TG Total Governmental Activities
TP
 

Total Primary Government

Expenses

$ 2,273,072
23,785
34,045
6,508

192,768
49,783
26,260

123,258
150,540
262,863
259,746
353,848
24,552
13,075

139,103
1,900

860,233
4,795,339

$ 4,795,339

Program Revenues
Opera ting

Charges for Grants and
Services Contributions

$ 768,823
1,737

26,258
3,128
7,405
1,912
1,009

14,680
86,449
10,097
9,977

13,691
943
502

89,618

805,107
1,841,336

$ 1,841,336

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Assets

Governmental
Activities

(1,416,295)
(20.744)
(7,366)
(3,184)

(174,392)
(45,038)
(23,756)

(102,963)
(33,475)

(228.516)
(234,986)
(319,990)

(22,212)
(11.829)
(49,485)
(1,900)

(51,776)
(2,747,907)
(2,747.907)

General Revenues:
MT Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes 1,312.861
DT Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service 230.692

IE Investment Earnings 56,981
GC Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs 1,516,336
MI Miscellaneous 40,235
TR Total General Revenues 3,157,105

CN ^
;5 ;r fi ; 5ury,u ,xL%-:•:or::_;::,

:5 • 4^'•4L.....,....,....:: :^r.. ;4:4i°h`'s^^tiy.•.r...r..,.... ::^, fv : n .; -..r...r.r
NB Net Assets - Beginning 2,791,333
PA Prior Period Adjustment (403,127)

Net Assets - Beginning, as Restated 2,388,206

NE Net Assets - Ending $ 2,797,404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AUGUST 31, 2406

10

Data 21st Century
Control General Community

Codes Fund Learning Center.

ASSETS:
1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 860,997 $ (3,388)
1225 Taxes Receivable, Net 49,701
1244 Due from Other Governments 333,415 133.479

1260 Due from Other Funds 16,977 —
I 81: 090= .::: . U>

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

2110 Accounts Payable $ 15,392 $ 2,143
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 64,814 5,240
2170 Due to Other Funds 10,288 --
2180 Due to Other Governments -- 122,708
2300 Unearned Revenue 280,698
2000 Total Liabilities 371,192 130,091

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved Fund Balances:

3420 Debt Service — --
3450 Reserve for Food Service -- --

3600 Unreserved 889,898 --
3000 Total Fund Balances 889,898 --

40®....... .. :: 9tal Liabilities:: and. - d' : 3alences .. 	! >! $: ::i 1 $1 >': ;::`:::<:.: . $" , ° ° ., •l 30 'f::=.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT C-1

50 98

Debt Other Total
wvirR GI pAmmental Governmental

S Funds

$ 272,551 $ 23,510 $ 1,153,670
12,688 -- 62,389

-- 34,051 500,945
21 -- 16,998

285 2 < 57 17340': '

- $ 8,133 $ 25,668
-- 13,623 83,877
— 780 11,068

-- 28,907 151,815
12,688 4,062 297,448
12,688 55,505 569,476

272,572 -- 272,572
-- 2,05E 2,056
-- -- 889,898
272,572 2,056 1,164,526

@ :285,26^iH i'i i ... ..., ^.:f" 57 ' •13 ! 9'f'-ihifiE
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EXHIBIT C-iR

AGUA DLJLCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AUGUST 39, 2008

Total fund balance - governmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

$ 1,164,526

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 4,160508
Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 243,684
Payebles for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. (2,820,465)
Other long-term liabilities which are not due and payable in the current period are not reported in the funds. (150,847)

Net assets of governmental activities - statement of net assets $ 2,797,404

14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

10
Data 21st Century

Control General Community
Codes Fund Learning Center.

REVENUES:
5700 Local and Intermediate Sources $ 1,398,560 $
5800 State Program Revenues 1,e20,649
59a0 Federal Program Revenues 7,824 686,109
5020 Total Revenues 3,027,033 686,109

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

0011 Instruction 1,506,569 89,729
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services 22,331
0013 Curriculum and Staff Development 7,217 15,000
0021 Instructional Leadership 3.349 --
0023 School Leadership 187,931 --
0031 Guidance, Counseling, & Evaluation Services 48,534 --
0033 Health Services 25,601 --
0034 Student Transportation 203,194 --
0035 Food Service -- --
0036 CocurricularlExtracunicular AclYvilies 256,267
0041 General Administration 253,228 --
0051 Plant Maintenance and Operations 344,789 --
0052 Security and Monitoring Services 23,938 --
0053 Data Processing Services 12,745 --
0071 Principal on Long-term Debt -- --
0072 Interest on Long-farm Debt -- --
0073 Bond Issuance Costs and Fees -- --
0093 Payments to Shared Service Ar rangements 57,387 581,380
6030 Total Expenditures 2,953,078 686,109

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
1100 Expenditures 73,955 --

Other Financing Sources and (Uses):
7912 Sale of Real or Personal Property 300 --
7915 Transfers in -- --
8911 Transfers Out (35,294) --
7080 Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) (34,994) --
1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 38,961 --

0100 Fund Balances - Beginning 850,937 - -
(]......:

... ..........................-.
Balances'-FdinFond:: $ < 869 89::: .: $ _.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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327,855

EXHIBIT C-2

155,000
127,093

1,900

43,862

Other
f,rnrernmAnfal

yi JV,wN

72,834
880,638
984,126

619,734
857

10,974
2,996

10,890
146,762

180

221,466
1,013,859

(29,733)

98
Total

Governmental
Funds

$ 1,667,451
1,783,101
1,574,571
5,025,123

2,216,032
23,188
33,191
6,345

187,931
48,534
25,601

214,084
146,762
256,267
253,228
344,969

23,936
12,745

155,000
127,093

1,900
860,233

4,937,039

88,084
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EXHIBIT C4

AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 82,823

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
('SOA") are different because:

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the BOA. 107,014
The depreciation of capital assets used In governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (108,304)
Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 179,115
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 155,000
The accretion of interest on capital appreciation bonds is not reported in the funds. (12,010)
The net revenue (expense) of Internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 5,560

Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities $ 409,198

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-1

AQUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NETASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
AUGUST31, 2008

Nonmajor
Internal Service

Fund
Data

Control Insurance
Codes Fund

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 13,752
Receivables-

1260 Due from Other Funds 5,560
Total Current Assets 19,312

1000 Total Assets $ 19,312

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

2110 Accounts Payable $ 19,312
Total Current Liabilities 19,312

2000 Total Liabilities 19,312

NET ASSETS:
3900 Unrestricted Net Assets 5,560
3000:::::':> .; Total Net Assets ,°.; `..<',;<:' '>' : > : >.> > ' < :< ' " <' ':' :' : < : ": ' :  
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



EXH1BIT d-2

AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NETRSSETS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008
Nonmajor

Internal Service
Fund

Data
Control Insurance
Codes

	

	 Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:
5700 Local and Intermediate Sources $ 14,206
5420 Total Revenues 14,206

OPERATING EXPENSES:
6200 Professional and Contracted Services 14,206
6030 Total Expenses 14,206

Income (Loss) before Contributions and Transfers --

7915 Transfers In 5.560
1300 Change in Net Assets 5,560

0100 Total Net Assets -Beginning (5,560)
3300

...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-3
AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

Internal
Service
Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $ --
Cash Received from Grants --
Cash Receipts (Payments) for Quasi-external

Operating Transactions with Other Funds 8,648
Cash Payments to Employees for Services --
Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services (14,206)
Cash Payments for Grants to Other Organizations --
Other Operating Cash Receipts (Payments) -

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (5,560)

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Transfers From (To) Other Funds 5,560

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities 5,560

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Contributed Capital --

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities --

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and Dividends on Investments

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities —

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 13,752
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 13,752

Reconciliation of Operating income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables
Decrease (Increase) in Interfund Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$ 5,560

(5,560)

(5,$60)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT E-1

AQUA DIJLCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AUGUST31, 2008 Investment

Trust Agency

Data
Control Scholarship Student

Codes Fund Activity

ASSETS:

1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ -- $ 26,604

1800 Restricted Asssts 14,031 --

1000 Total Assets $ 14,031 $ 26,604

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

2170 Due to Other Funds $ -- $ 11,489
2160 Due to Other Governments -- 13,677

2190 Due to Student G roups — 1,438

2000 Total Liabilities — 26,604

NET ASSETS
^

p
^
y

^Vl7W Held in Trust for Investme nfs 41 031
Ser i^ ; 4;: ti ;^' G;."x.^<^-^. }"^:.'-: F.;:.'-̂ :^'Ui'y/• r'Y Y'iti'^, r.:y ^Y,; ,r:i

• i
]i^

r
^;^ G,'^^^-`^r-_-.-. n.c^

{•S^`` + ^•
•t.Y'-:ir .^ qY^ ^y1•r ̂ r ,fir ^I: 4, r:>•^:'^^.^' - ^y - r'^ti^`^^ q̂ ^r i..̂ ^J ''.."i:

::c
i r r^1^'r^r S '^ •1.^v.., ^5r
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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444

13,587
$ 14,031

EXHIBIT E-2

AQUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

Additions:
Investment Income
Net (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments
Employer Contributions
Plan Member Contributions

Total Additions

Deductions:
Scholarship Awards
Benefits
Refunds of Contributions
Administrative Expenses

Total Deductions -

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets-Beginning of the Year
Net Assets-End of the Year

Private-
Purpose
Trusts

444

444

22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



AG[JA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

A. Summary o ignifient es

The basic financial statements of Agua Dulce Independent School District (the 'District") have been prepared In
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") applicable to
governmental units in conjunction with the Texas Education Agency's Financial Accountability System Resource
Guide ("Resource Guide"). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

1. Reporting Entity

The Board of School Trustees ("Board"), a seven-member group, has governance responsibilities over all activities
related to public elementary and secondary education within the jurisdiction of the District. The Board Is elected by the
public and has the exclusive power and duty to govern and oversee the management of the public schools of the
District. All powers and duties not specifically delegated by statute to the Texas Education Agency ("TEA") or to the
State Board of Education are reserved for the Board, and the TEA may not substitute its judgment for the lawful
exercise of those powers and duties by the Board. The District receives funding from local, state and federal
government sources and must comply with the requirements of those funding entities. However, the District is not
included In any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined by the GASB In its Statement No. 14, 'The Financial
Reporting Entity," as revised by GASB Statement No.39, and there are no component units Included within the reporting
entity.

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements. The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The
District does not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues Include (a)
fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds,
with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is
on major governmental funds, each displayed In a separate column. All remaining governmental funds
are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: This is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

Texas 21st Century Learning Centers: This is a Special Revenue Fund of the District which accounts for
the 21st Century Funds. Agua Dulce ISD is the fiscal agent In a shared service arrangement which
includes Banquets ISO.

Debt Service Fund: This fund accounts for the general long-term debt principal and interest.

In addition, the District reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to services provided
to parties inside the District. These funds facilitate distribution of support costs to the users of support
services on a cast-reimbursement basis. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
District's governmental activities, this fund type is included in the "Governmental Activities column of the
government-wide financial statements.

Agency Funds: These funds are used to report student activity funds and other resources held in a purely custodial
capacity (assets equal liabilities), Agency funds typically Involve only the receipt, temporary investment, and
remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However, because their assets are held in
a trustee or agent capacity and are therefore not available to support District programs, these funds are not
included in the government-wide statements.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incur red, regardless of when the related cash
flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year In
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The District does not consider revenues collected after
its year-end to be available in the current period. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of
property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the
susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash
because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as
earned, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments,
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the District incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may
be used, it is the District's policy to use unrestricted resources first, then restricted resources.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting," all proprietary funds will continue to
follow Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") standards issued on or before November 30, 1989.
However, from that date forward, proprietary funds will have the option of either 1) choosing not to apply
future FASB standards (including amendments of earlier pronouncements), or 2) continuing to follow new
FASB pronouncements unless they conflict with GASB guidance. The District has chosen to apply future
FASB standards.
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

3. Financial Statement Amounts

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if they
have a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

b. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 3 for all real
and business personal property In conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code_ Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in
which imposed. On January 1 of each . year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all
taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available
when they become due or past due and receivable within the current period.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are based upon
historical experience In collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically
reviewed and written off, but the District is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific
statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.

Delinquent Taxes
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Net Taxes

c. Inventories and Prepaid Items

General Debt Service
Fund Fund Total

$ 172,140 $ 43.945 $ 216,085
(122,439) (31,257) (153,696)

$ 49 761 $ 12,668 $ 62,389

The District records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase method of accounting for
inventory in accordance with the Resource Guide.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capItal assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization
threshold of $5,004 Is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Buildings 75
Building Improvements 30
Vehicles 8-15
Office Equipment 10-20

Receivable and Payable Balances

The District believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial
statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided
which disaggregates those balances.
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation.
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or
expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and
reduces Its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In
and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of
activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances"
line of the government-wide statement of net assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates.

h. Data Control Codes

Data Control Codes appear in the rows and above the columns of certain financial statements. The TEA requires
the display of these codes in the financial statements filed with TEA in order to insure accuracy in building a
statewide database for policy development and funding plans.

B. Comp) ce and Accountability

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," violations of
finance- related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to
address such violations:

Violation Action Taken
None reported I Not applicable

The District's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The depository
bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the District's agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient
to protect District funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is
waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC')
insurance.

Cash Deposits:

At August 31, 2008, the carrying amount of the District's deposits (Cash, certificates of deposit, and
interest-bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $1,194,026 and the bank balance was
$1,200,558. The District's cash deposits at August 31, 2008 and during the year ended August 31, 2008, were
entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the District's agent bank in the District's
name.
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 39, 2008

Investments:

The District is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, to adopt,
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the following areas: (1) safety of
principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5)
expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average
dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (6) investment staff quality
and capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.

The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in
this area conducted as a part of the audit of the basic financial statements disclosed that in the areas of
investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies, the District adhered to the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the District were in accordance with local policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the District. These Include, with certain
restrictions, 1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, 2) certificates of deposit,
3) certain municipal securities, 4) securities lending program, 5) repurchase agreements, 6) bankers acceptances,
7) mutual funds, 8) investment pools, 9) guaranteed investment contracts, and 10) commercial paper.

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to the following specific
investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an Investment will not fulfill Its obligations. The ratings
of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end,
the District was not significantly exposed to credit risk.

b. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the
deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the
District's name.

investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in
the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department
or agent but not in the District's name.

At year end, the District was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

c. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's Investment in a single issuer. At year
end, the District was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes In interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end,
the District was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the
District was not exposed to foreign currency risk. i
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Ending
Increases Decreases Balances

— $ --	$ 52,019
— -- 52,019

AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

Investment Accounting Policy
The District's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-earning
investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts using a
cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the Impairment of the credit
standing of the issuer or by other factors, It is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a
legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term 'short-term" refers to investments which have a remaining
term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means that the investment's value does not vary
with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning
investment contracts.

Public Funds Inge is ment Pooia
Public funds investment pools in Texas ("Pools") are established under the authority of the tnterlocal Cooperation Act,
Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act (the "Act"),
Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addition to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and
safety of principal, the Act requires Pools to: 1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and other
persons who do not have a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; 2) maintain a continuous
rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and 3)
maintain the market value of its underlying Investment portfolio within one half of one percent of the value of its shares.

The District's investments in Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share of the pool's underlying
portfolio, unless the pool Is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share value. A 2a7 -like pool is one which is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") as an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy
that it will, and does, operate In a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning
Balances

Governmental _activities;
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 52,019 $
Total capital assets not being depreciated 52,019

Capital assets being depreciated.
Buildings and improvements 6,153,085 — -- 6,153,085
Equipment 384,044 — 276,147 107,897
Vehicles 309,666 107,014 24,358 392,522
Total capital assets being depreciated 6,846,995 107,014 300,505 6,653,504

Less accumulated depreciation for_
Buildings and improvements (2,150,150) (86.429) -- (2,236,579)
Equipment 50,984 (5,687) 126,980 (81,683)
Vehicles (234,925) (16.188) (24,358) (226,755)

Total accumulated depreciation (2,334,091) (108,304) 102,622 (2,545,017)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 4,512,904 (1,290) 403,127 4,108,487

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 4,564,923 $ (1,2a) $ 403,127 $_ 4,160,506

Depredation was charged to functions as follows:

Instruction $ 57,040
Instructional Resources and Media Services 597
Curriculum and Staff Development 854
Instructional Leadership 163
School Leadership 4,837
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School Leadership 4,837
(DEPRECIATION CONTINUED)
Guidance, Counseling, & Evaluation Services 1,249
Health Services 650
Student Transportation 16,188
Food Services 3,778
Extracurricular Activities 6,596
General Administration 6,518
Plant Maintenance and Operations 8,879
Security and Monitoring Services 616
Data Processing Services 330

$ 108,304

E. InterfundBalances and Activities

1. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at August 31, 2008, consisted of the following:

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund General Fund $ 4,707 Short-term loans
General Fund Trust & Agency 11,490 Short-term loans
General Fund Other Governmental Funds 780 Short-term loans
Internal Service fund General Fund 5,560 Short-term loans
Debt Service Fund General Fund 21 Short-term loans

Total $ 22,558

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year.

2. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at August 31, 2008, consisted of the following:

Transfers From Transfers To Amount Reason

General fund Other Governmental Funds $ 29,734 Supplement other funds sources
General fund Internal Service Fund 5,560 Supplement other funds sources

Total $ 35,294

F. Long-Term Ohliga s

The District has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports and Material Event Notices
to the State Information Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council. This information is required under
SEC Rule 15c2-12 to enable investors to analyze the financial condition and operations of the District.

1. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended
August 31, 2008, are as follows:
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Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental activitl
Unlimited Ref. Bonds

1998 4.100% $ 2,621,263 -- 798 2,620,485 465

Total governmental activities $ 4852,621,263 $ -- $ 798 $ 2,620,465 $

Accretion on Refunding 293,039 12,010 154,202 150,847 154,535

TOTAL $ 2,914,302 $ 12,010 $ 155,000 $ 2,771,312 $ 155,000

Current Portion Due Within One Year 155,000

Due in More Than One Year 2,616,312

2. Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at August 31, 2008, are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Year Ending Augusta
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
Totals

3. Advance Refunding of Debt

Principal Interest Total
$ 465 $ 281,628 $ 282,093

160,000 123,452 283,452
170,000 115,860 285,860
180,000 107,678 287,678
190,000 98,935 288.935

1,100,000 343,783 1.443,783
820,000 63,000 883,000

$__ 2,620,465 $ 1,134,336 $ 3,754,801

GASB Statement No. 7, "Advance Refundings Resulting in Defeasance of Debt," provides that refunded debt
and assets placed in escrow for the payment of related debt service be excluded from the financial
statements. In 1998 the District issued $2,954,989 in Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds Series 1998 to pay
off portions of Unlimited Tax Bonds. As of August 31, 2008, outstanding balances of bond issues have been
refunded and defeased in-substance by placing existing assets and the proceeds of new bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments.

G. Risk Manages

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2008, the District purchased commercial
insurance to cover general liabilities. There were no significant reductions in coverage in the past fiscal year and
there were no settlements exceeding insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years.

H. Pension Plan

1. Plan . Description

The District contributes to the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (the "System"), a public employee retirement
system. It is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with one exception: all risks and costs
are not shared by the District, but are the liability of the State of Texas. The System provides service retirement and
disability retirement benefits, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The System operates primarily
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II

under the provisions of the Texas Constitution and Texas Government Code, Title 8. Subtitle C. The Texas legislature
has the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions. The System issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the District. That report may be obtained
by writing the Teacher Retirement System of Texas, 1000 Red River Street, Austin, TX 78701-2698 or by calling (800)
223-8778.

Funding Policy

Under provisions In State law, plan members are required to contribute 6.4% of their annual covered salary and
the State of Texas contributes an amount equal to 6.58% of the District's covered payroll.  The District's
employees' contributions to the System for the years ending August 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $124,038,
$146,553 and $96,215, respectively, and were equal to the required contributions for each year. Other
contributions made from federal and private grants and from the District for salaries above the statutory minimum
for the years ending August 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $9,558. $11,731 and $8,913, respectively, and were
equal to the required contributions for each year. The amount contributed by the State on behalf of the District
was $103,863 for the year ended August 31, 2008_

Plan Description

The District contributes to the Texas Public School Retired Employees Group Insurance Program (TRS-Care), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment health care plan administered by the Teacher
Retirement System of Texas (TRS). TRS-Care Retired Plan provides health care coverage for certain persons
(and their dependents) who retired under the Teacher Retirement System of Texas. The statutory authority for
the program is Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 1575. Section 1575.052 grants the TRS Board of Trustees the
authority to establish and amend basic and optional group insurance coverage for participants. The TRS issues
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for TRS-Care. That report may be obtained by visiting the TRS web site at www.trs.state.tx.ua, by writing to
the Communications Department of the .Teacher Retirement System of Texas at 1000 Red River Street, Austin,
Texas 78701, or by calling 1-800-223-8778.

2. Funding Policy

Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are legally established each biennium by the
Texas Legislature. Texas Insurance Code, Sections 1575.202, 203, and 204 establish state, active employee,
and public school contributions, respectively. The State of Texas and active public school employee
contribution rates were 1.0% and 0.65% of public school payroll, respectively, with school districts contributing a
percentage of payroll set at 0.55% for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006. Per Texas Insurance Code, Chapter
1575, the public school contribution may not be less than 0.25% or greater than 0.75% of the salary of each
active employee of the public school. For the years ended August 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the State's
contributions to TRS-Care were $33,825, $26,400, and $17,925, respectively, the active member contributions
were $88,128, $67,077, and $46,230, respectively, and the District's contributions were $81,133, $53,521, and
$36,533, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

During the year ended August 31, 2008, employees of the District were covered by a health insurance plan (the Plan).
The District paid premiums of $173 per month per employee to the Plan. Employees, at their option, authorized
payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependents. All premiums were paid to a third party administrator, acting
on behalf of the licensed insurer, The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was
documented by contractual agreement.

The contract between the District and the third party administrator is renewable September 1, and terms of coverage
and premium costs are included In the contractual provisions.
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K. Commitments and Contingencies

Contingencies

The District participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be
impaired. In the opinion of the District, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies.

Litigation

No reportable litigation was pending against the District at August 31.2008.

Shared-Se[vices Arrangements

Shared Sendces. Arrangement - Fiscal Agent
The District is the fiscal agent for a Shared Services Arrangement ("SSA") which provides for the Reading First
Program, and the TX 21st Centrury to the member districts listed below. All services are provided by the fiscal
agent. The member districts provided the funds to the fiscal agent. According to
guidance provided in TEA'S Resource Guide, the District has accounted for the fiscal agent's activities of the SSA in
a special revenue fund and will be accounted for using Model' 2 and 3 in the SSA section of the Resource Guide.
Expenditures of the SSA are summarized below:

M

Reading TX 21st
First Century

Member Districts Expenditures Expenditures
Banquete $ NIA $ 335,765
Ben Bolt
Bishop
Ramirez 87.468
Ague Duice 133,977 245,614
Total $ 221,465 $ 581.379

Prior_P$aod Adjustment

Fund balance at the beginning of the year has been corrected to write off old assets and assets less than $5,000.

Prior Period Adjustment in Exhibit B- I:
Adjust Buildings and Equipment $ (403,127)

d al
 

Workers Compensation Insurance

of $8,786 includes incurred but not reported
an the requirements of Governmental

a liability for claims be reported if information
probable that a liability has been incurred as of
be reasonably estimated. Because actual claim

legal doctrines, and damage awards, the process
n exact amount. The liability booked was the

The accrued liability for Workers' Compensation self-insurance
claims. This liability at August 31, 2008, is based
Accounting Standards Board Statement No.10, which requires thet
prior to the issuance of the financial statements Indicates that it Is
the date of the financial statements, and the amount of loss can
liabilities depend on such complex factors as Inflation, changes in
used in computing the liability does not result necessarily in a
discounted estimate of the acturary at the mean funding level.
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Changes in the workers compensation claims liability amounts in fixcal year 2008 is represented below:

Current Year
Beginning of Claims and Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

Liability Estimates Payments Year End

2008 Workers' Compensation $ 8,786 $ (3 680) $ 14,206 $ 19,312
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Required Supplementary Information

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statements.



1 2 3

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

$ 1,300,289 $ 1,391,519 $= - f
1,835,110 1,835,110 1620

15,785 15,785
3,151,184 3,242 ,414 !>!` . 3

1,617,878 1,500,547 `: 1506
27,973 27,973
11,247 14,523 ';7

1,657,098 1,839,043

5,800 3,350 3
1187,213 190,647 187
193,013 193,997 f E;

58,166
26,627
156,077

274,727
515,597

275,501
275,501

410,220
5,650

13,251
429,121

51,001
51,001

3,121,331

58,166
28,627

205,708 ^e
303,652

594,153

76,001 ; ?51

76,001

22,954

396,613
24,099

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

$ 7,()41
4S (214,461)

+4 (7,961)
(215.381)

93.978
5,642
3.306

1l7' 102,926

J49: 1
2,716
2,717

4 9,632
1,026

I8 .;' 2,514
47,385

i1 60,557

8 29,075
29,075

ce; 51,824
163

ts 506
7f 52493

^7 18,614
18,614

378: 666,382

51,001

00 (4,700)
(3,633)

) (8,333)
Zr 42,668

AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT G-1

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

Data
Control
Codes

REVENUES:
5700 Local and Intermediate Sources
5800 State Program Revenues
5900 Federal Program Revenues
5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Instruction & Instructional Related Services:
0011 Instrudioon
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services
0013 Curriculum and Staff Development

Total Instruction & Instr. Related Services

I nstructional and School Leadership:
D021 Instructional Leadership
0023 School Leadership

Total Instructional & School Leadership

Support Services - Student (Pupi l) :
0031 Guidance, Counseling and Evaluation Services
0023 Health Services
0034 Student (Pupa) Transporta tion
0036 Cocurricular/Extracur icular Activities

Total Support Services - Student (Pupil)

Administrative Support Services:
0041 General Administra tion

Total Administrative Support Services

Support Services - Nonstudent Based:
0051 Plant Maintenance and Operations
0052 Security and Monitoring Services
0053 Data Processing Services

Total Support Services - Nonstudent Based

Intergovernmental Charges;
0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Dist.-SSA

Total Intergovernmental Charges

6030 Total Expenditures

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
1100 Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
7912 Sale of Real or Personal Property 5,000 5,000
8911 Transfers Out (14,259) (31,661)
7080 Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) (9,259) (26,661)
1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 20,594 (3,707)

0100 Fund Balance - Beginning 850,937 850,937
3 :,,F , .
000°..- ......... und:8da . 	..... Er[c1

in
... =: =<:: '::::'.:' ;'::; :;'.>; ;:::::.<;: ;;<:;::>::<>::.::::;:::: ::$ 31?:: ' : $ 84723O.. .
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SSA 21ST CENTURY COMMUNITY LEARNING CENTERS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

1 2 3 Variance with
Data Final Budget

Contro l Budgeted Amounts Positive

Codes

	

	 Original	 Final	 Actual	 (Negative)

REVENUESi
5900 Federal Program Revenues $ 700,000 $ 700,000 "^.,'& $ (13.891)

5020 Total Revenues 740,000 700,000 (13,691)

EXPENDITURES: <''n''^: is cr 5!'r
=
c; a^?^.

CUrrBRt: :k a:-yn^;;{^rzr;,r:s: rLr.
C Sri rrq}'.- -r..Instruction & Instructional Related Services: ?''z^ w ;' 1 r

0011 Instruction 700,000 106,198 f `% 184$9

op °t'' 0013 Curriculum and Staff Development -- 15,000 '^̂ .,.  ^^'^ ^
Totai Instruction & Instr. Related Services 700,000 121,19$ 16,469

Intergovernmental Charges:.
0093 Payments to FiscalA ent/MemberD:st.-SSA -- 587,943 =; s;`.r 6,563Y 9  

Total Intergovernmental Charges — 587,943 =` x: > r, 6,563

6030 Total Expenditures 700,000 709,141 = ce 23,032

1100 Excess (Def c lency) of Revenues Over ( Under)
^firr-a. y.,r

1100 Expenditures — (9141) g'`'`'„ 9,141
1200 Net Change in Fund Balance -- (9141) c =- "''ti? y 9,141

0100 Fund Balance - Beginning - -- '
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Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons
as Supplementary Information

This supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.



AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

AUGUST31. 2008

240 261 265

Data National School 21st Century

Control Breakfast/Lunch Reading Community

Codes Program First Learning Center

ASSETS:
1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,614 $ 5,588 $ 13,544

1240 Due from Other Governments 2,06 — —
"y:.:. _ti::: :•yr: y.•yti : ^c.`-^ ^:•s.r •. • y^i'r oti%i -'' ^:i^

`iv ';s ,,,^-3}' 'e ^ c,^.^`%i h.r^. s ,n, cir.•Y^v== ^^ .5 ^ti^ :.y5 ., ^}z= 4 • ti;':^^: ;ry: o• ^^:
•rr 'v ^:- - ai^n^ :i.A-_:.__^4•c

.^t:.:^^... rv.'^•^ti^•..
•^'..!t-..... .....r-.•:ti'::: .'4!..•.5...x. -

LIABiLmES:
Current Liabilities:

2110 Accounts Payable $ 141 $ 1,011 $ 6,981

2160 Accrued Wages Payable 2,483 4,577 6,563

2170 Due to Other Funds —
2180 Due to Other Governments — —
2300 Unearned Revenue --
2000 Total Liabilities 2,624 5,588 13,544

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved Fund Balances:

3450 Reserve for Food Service 2,056 --
3000 Total Fund Balances 2,056 -- --

y^'^+ ^ ^ ^- Y
t:^}C'r'l,'r° ^j^ ^̂ r^a:^a._._ s}^-...... :^';CT 	._^,.. •..r d,S, f.^..
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EXHIBIT H-1

Total
Honmajor

348 401 404 411 Special
Optional Student Revenue

Reading Extended Year Success Technology Funds (See
s First Program Initiative Allotment Exhibit C-1)

$ (12) $ (419) $ (1,867) $ 4,062 $ 23,510
28,919  1,199 1,867 -- 34,051

Y'°i-=r.Y%..y.^ ^-^^2, ^4^k• v `56i^: r: sar '^ SV. ^ 	'^ :
G

, rqv. ;e q +^^
y.
 

•.
>3. . ^^ ^ 

i;-; 
^ '{^r^ .. _'ti

•
1^c .t s q''•::. •. ,^ •r •rY' •r: r '.S 

•
r ^S

=
a8•:',^' ra•ar faj ^%^^..y,i,.-. ̂ ^i4;?iF+

•
.i .ck.4kL %%i;.'^'u, •. +:^C "

o. .. ^"".rus...?. r?-?- ,cr-^ _-. .. ^^,..:^... }
r•^V^^.' 

•
40v

$ -- $ -- $ _ $ _ $ 8,133
-- __ _ __ 13,623

780 — -- 780,

28,907 -- -- — 28,907
-- _ — 4,062 4,062

28,907 780 — 4,062 55,505

_ -- - 2,056
-- 2,056

v,;•: y.r---•... yt: `i*i'•: c_'('s'.:s'•: •a••;:
^..b ..^vyr• ^;:4 E:= r:̀ r,. ;iỳ q a .^•r.. ' ' .: 

_ -• -r.'r ^ri`•`.;r`ti .''c t• 4i i',^ rvr5i7'• :'ever^,, ry ..^>, .,F ., r>r
, r,4,

:.:•.: 4'•:,•t
..• h.+w .t4?k . ^,:>;. ,. t . :r^.,';r 2F-`:'= I ^' - - -.,er g:: ..•r ^ ='., --_,,..... ,cur ,a ..;gtiayJi •,c SYSn •. v 5* w, _:°?
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR 77-fE YEAR ENDED AUGUST31, 2008

211 240 255 261

Data ESEA Title I National School ESEA Title II
Control improving Breakfast/Lunch Training & Reading
Codes Basic Programs Program Recruiting First

REVENUES:
5700 Local and Intermediate Sources $ — $ 30,654 $ -- $
5800 State Program Revenues -- 1,040 -- --
5900 Federal Program Revenues 98,983 85,515 26,667 133,977
5020 Total Revenues 98,983 117,209 26,667 133,977

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

0011 Instruction 96,775 -- 26,183 133,977
0012 instructional Resources and Media Services — -- -- --
0013 Curriculum and Staff Development 224 -- -- --
0021 Instructional Leadership 1,984 -- 484 --
0034 Student Transportation — -- -- --
0035 Food Service -- 146,762 -- --
0051 Plant Maintenance and Operations — 180 -- --
0093 Payments to Shared Service Arrangements — -- — -
6030 Total Expenditures 98,983 146,942 26,667 133,977

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
1100 Expenditures — (29,733) -- --

Other Financing Sources and (Uses):
7915 Transfers In - 29,733 •- --
7080 Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) -- 29,733 — --

0100 Fund Balances-Beginning -- 2,056 — --
_ .. ^•sV 3C,: 1 "5`r. :-l:i ^Y T•%%.::. .. yG,.^^., .l''/^ 'E..y r:

^y" ^ C% ^'_ ^''^r.Y=e.:4+,; ::ti:^=,
:^ .'4'•x'`5'"s 'r °'rte::--- .•r r^ 	-•:r :=^ :b•r. ';T'•t,., na,' ` '^{^^ .^y^{ ^,}'

rtii' r:),:Ssa•^ {,9, r.. ;:;':.f,:; i_; c, :: Ls,.. 6 -. F_fi z:r:, :'•t.^.^.!.".:•' i=ce •`ar, fs-•. - n ^-.'. .•" 'F^ ti`s :i '•^arbr 'r;-•: ^̂ '.i. ^acr_cC.:- r. v.TU r. r, -. Y:n •r- _ a.s'r!.':

y^
'SSr4r'^S';. :CY USr :{s^^4r--s-^: 'i b .^;}n...s...̂ .?,[..
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EXHIBIT H-2

Page 1 of 2

262 265 269 281 331

Enhancing 21st Century Title V. Part A Small, Rural Vo Ed

Education through Community Innovative School Basic

Technology Learning Centers Programs Achievement Prog Grant

$ - $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --

3,182 245,614 867 15,961 36,906

3,182 245,614 867 15,961 36,906

3,164 234,724 — 15,961 36,906
-- 857 — --

18 -- 10 -- --
- 10,890 — -- `"

 867 15,9613,182 245,614 36,906

-- _ --
^:^. .'\.-:_-5•'f T:i "='v^,[ ^—j','.t. -,'i^.^_J: ' '{,:!,^ ^r,:f,:: ;,l_-,,•,r 1•,^r TT••=:.r^^- :̂^.:•:': ^ .ry;•r•^ • • .

-̂
'G
•.

''^5.. r^^5:ir ^, ^i'G r.r..rrY^Z 'ii4!''.:'^' i^v.-J,^:••5.: ir4'{^^^i^}r: ,5,,.^Y,.ir•Z;F,('- :•:`.,!•,^i1^̂i ^.ŷ y:?av f,-' 
::r;.

,Lp,TT•. r ^(

f.• 	;.'.'' r 5 pvr5,•. T;i:f-:Q. .+ti.•rY^•i Y ' Y^"r^a..-^:: r.., Gr• r'r T r ' r; . . r:i1.a 
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s
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•
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STA TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST31, 2008

348 401 404

Data Optional Student

Contro l Reading Extended Year Success

Codes First Program Initiative

REVENUES:
5700 Local and Intermediate Sources $ -- $ -- $ --
5800 State Program Revenues — 1,722 18,666

5900 Federal Program Revenues 232,966 -- --
5020 Total Revenues 232,966 1,722 18,666

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

0011 Instruction 1,500 1.222 18,666

0012 instructional Resources and Media Services --
0013 Curriculum and Staff Development 10,000 —
0021 Instructional Leadership -- 500 -"
0034 Student Transportation -- --
0035 Food Service --
0051 Plant Maintenance and Operations -- --
0093 Payments to Shared Service Arrangements 221,466 -- --
6030 Total Expenditures 232,966 1,722 18,666

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
1100 Expenditures -- -- --

Other Financing Sources and (Uses):
7915 Transfers In -- -- --
70B0 Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) — -- --

0100 Fund Balances - Beginning -- -- —
•+c•

,
 N ,.;S^nn, m:ra,Tr-=^.c^: •c

y
v
;
• : •c _ v.:. s.• ..; ,; •„srs ^?'^^::: r_ ;r; •+..;•; ;+; -++.a" .i.^r

rSY,., res."'^' 9 ^^^^' ^`.^7
r
^^ T: ̂ 't: iW

.r .{.. 	r:':..-. :hti•ir i S  r
.:•^`1

.^r..'•'?'',`S'ri^'s •r7'•` ur.• '%U +r-a-+ a.r..,....a +trr.,r ':^., 'r;, - -`c^
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409

12,263

12,263

428

High

25,294

11,513

750

12,263

411 427

Auto

10,899 2,950

10,899 2,950

10,899 2,950

EXHIBIT H-2

Page 2 of 2

Total
Nonmajor

Special
Revenue

Funds (See
Exhibit C-2)

$ 30,654
72,834

25,294 619,734
-- 857
-- 10,974
-- 2,996

10,890
._ 146,762

180

221,466
25,294 1,013,859

-- (29,733)

__ _ _- 29,733
__ __ _ — 29,733

_- _ _ r.^ 2,056
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Other Supplementary Information

This section includes financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a part of the basic financial statements. It may, however, include information which is
required by other entities.



AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

I 2
Assessed/Appraised

Year Ended Tax Rates Value For School

Auaust 31 Maintenance Debt Service Tax Purposes

1999 and Prior Years $ Various $ Various

2000 1 A7 .47

2001 1.50 .3673

2002 1.50 .3443

2003 1.50 .2428

2004 1.50 .3094

2005 1.50 .2599

2008 1.50 .244

2007 1.3705 .2406

2008 (School Year Under Audit) 1.047 .2129

1000 Totals

9000 - Portion of Row 1000 for Taxes Paid Into Tax Increment Zone Under Chapter 311, Tax Code

$ Various

59,992,596

67,254,618

75,910,961

80,019,542

71,571,973

77,154,317

84,747,024

91,378,993

105,068,194
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EXHIBIT J-1

10
Beginning
Balance
911107

-50
Ending
Balance
8131108

20 31 32 40
Current Entire
Year's Maintenance Debt Service Year's

Total Levy Collections Collections Adjustments

$ -- $ 2,349 $ 742 $ (3,708)

— 1,345 430 (108)

— 3,262 799 (104)

2,122 487 (86)

.. 4,045 655 (100)

-- 2,902 599 (81)

4,684 812 (607)

6,881 1,119 (510)

._ 15,032 2,639 (461)

1,300,513 1,056,745 214,909 (488)

$ 1,300,513 $	1,099,367 $	223,189 $	(6,25)

$ - $ -- $ — $ -_
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT J-2

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES FOR COMPUTATION OF INDIRECT COST FOR 2009-2010
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

FUNCT[GN 41 AND RELATED FUNCTIO -53_ GENERAL ADMIM-&TRATlOt4

Total $ 13,874 $ 27,137 $ 121,356 $ 99,702 $ — $ — $ 262,069

Total expenditures for General and Special Revenue Funds (9) $ 4,653,046

LESS: Deductions of Unallowable Costs

FISCAL _YEAR
Total Capital Outlay (6600) (10) $ 107,014

Total Debt & Lease (6500) (11) $ -

Plant Maintenance (Functions 51,6100-6400) (12) $ 344,969

Food (Function 35, 6341 and 6499) (13) $ 48,995

Stipends (6413) (14) $ -

Column 4 (above) - Total Indirect Cost $ 99,702

Subtotal 600,690

Net Allowed Direct Cost $ 4,052,366

CUMULATIVE
Total Cost of Buildings Before Depreciation (1520) (15) $ 6,153,685

Historical Cost of Buildings over 50 years old (16) 1,059,751

Amount of Federal Money in Building Cost (Net of #16) (17) -
Total Cost of Furniture & Equipment Before Depreciation (15308 1540) (18) 500,419

Historical Cost of Furniture & Equipment over 16 years old (19) 132,238

Amount of Federal Money In Furniture & Equipment (Net of #19) (20) $ —

(8) Note A - $8,841 In Function 53 expenditures are included In this report on administrative costs.
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT J -3
FUND BALANCE AND CASH FLOW CALCULATION WORKSHEET (UNAUDITED)
GENERAL FUND
AS OF AUGUST 31, 2008

Control
Codes lExplanation Amount

1 Total General Fund Fund Balance as of August 31, 2008 (Exhibit C-1 object 3000
for the General Fund only) $ 889,898

2 Total General Fund Reserved Fund Balance (from Exhibit C-1 - total of
object 3400s for the General Fund only) —

3 Total General Fund Designated Fund Balance (from Exhibit C-1 - total of
object 3500s for the General Fund only) —

4 Estimated amount needed to cover fall cash flow deficits in the General
Fund (net of borrowed funds and funds representing deferred revenues) —

5 Estimate of one month's average cash disbursements during the regular
school session (911108 - 5131109) 349,486

8 Estimate of delayed payments from state sources (58XX) including
August payment delays 238,729

7 Estimate of underpayment from state sources equal to variance between
Legislative Payment Estimate (LPE) and District Planning Estimate (DPE)
or District's calculated earned state aid amount —

8 Estimate of delayed payments from federal sources (59XX) —

9 Estimate of expenditures to be reimbursed to General Fund from Capital
Projects Fund (uses of General Fund cash after bond referendum and prior
to issuance of bonds) —

10 General Fund Optimum Fund Balance and Cash Flow (Lines 2+3+4+5+6+7+8+9) 588,215

11 Excess (Deficit) Undesignated Unreserved General Fund Fund Balance
(Line I minus Line 10) 301.683

If Item ii is a Pasitirre Number
Excess funds will be used to cover summer deficits and start of school expenses.



AQUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT J-4
NATIONAL SCHOOL BREAKFAST AND LUNCH PROGRAM
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006

1 2 3
Data Variance

Contro l Positive
Codes Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
=,:;^.z:• ,_•.

5700 Local and Intermediate Sources $ 33,000 sfi r k? rr =: $ (2,346)
5800 State Program Revenues 1 200 180

5900 Federal Program Revenues 99,000 (13,485)
5020 Total Revenues 133,200 e fi (15991 )

EXPENDITURES:
Current: LJq^:^..s e•riy'.

Support Services - Student (Pupil)
0035 Food Services 151,250 ,S o ,_.•%:: ' 4,488

Total Support Services - Student (Pupil) 151,250 ;' 4,488

Support Services - Nonstudent Based: ;^s s ^ °" '' ti^ ^:.. 6,^.,..
0051 Plant Maintenance and Operations 370 q = =: rs 190

Total Support Services - Nonstudent Based 370 - S l ;;w 190

6030 Total Expenditures 151,620 4,678

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
1100 Expenditures (18,420) err U ? 5 :  (11.313)

:li 
Y 
^i q,.^- mgt 4 #x '.?7 •J.

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
7915 Transfers In 31,661 4 (1928),

:...;_ r7080 Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 31,651 ;.::-: ' ^ (1928),
ti %' ,1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 13,241 L:^  ^ . • tiJ^fi^4^,i (13241)

2056 '.'` "*'; 5,
,

01 00 Fund Balance-Beginning ^^• -
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907

1.207

1,207

40,128
40,128

AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT J -5
DEBT SERVICE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

2 3
Variance
Positive

Actual (Negative)

$ 17,467
21,454
38,921

Data
Control
Codes

REVENUES:
5700 Local and Intermediate Sources
5800 State Program Revenues
5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:

0071 Principal on Gong-Term Debt
0072 interest on Long-Term Debt
0073 Bond Issuance Costs and Fees

Total Debt Service

6030 Total Expenditures

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
1100 Expenditures
1200 Net Change in Fund Balance

0100 Fund Balance - Beginning

1

Budget

$ 220,770
68,164

155,000
128,000

285,200

285,200

3,734
3,734

228,710

CV1
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A Professional Limited Liability Comply Professional Assacrates c Senior Advisor:

Certified Public Accountants

	

	 per' Safe' CPA
Betty Morales CPA

Ryan Johnston

David Natividad

Dudley dowlund CPA

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Trustees
Agua Dulce Independent School District
P.O. Box 250
Agua Dulce, Texas 78330-0250

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Agua Dulce Independent School District as of and for the year ended August
31, 2008, which collectively comprise the Agua Dulce Independent School District's basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated Janua ry 3, 2008. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered Ague Dulce Independent School Dis trict's internal contro l
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing pro cedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Agua Dulce Independent School Distric t's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agua Dulce Independent School District's internal control over
financial reporting. A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A signi ficant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of cont ro l
deficiencies, that adversely affects the Agua Dulce Independent School Dist rict's ability to initiate, authorize,
record, process or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Agua Dulce Independent School
District's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented by the Agua Dulce
Independent School Dist rict's internal control.

A material weakness Is a significant deficiency, or combina tion of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the Ague Dulce Independent School District's internal control.

5934 S. Staples, Suite 201 Corpus Christi, Texas 78413

Phone: (361) 993-1000 Fax: (361) 991-2880 land-c corn

Members of the American Institute and Texas Society of Ce rtified Public Accountants
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we considered to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Comoliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Agua Dulce Independent School District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements. noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. We also noted certain immaterial
instances of noncompliance that we have reported to management of Agua Dulce Independent School
District in a separate letter dated January 3, 2008.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, the Board
of Trustees, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectful su miffed,
C

Gow and, Strealy, Morales/Co/,PLLC

January 3, 2008
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Gowland, Strealy, Morales & Company
A Professional Limited Liability Company

Certified Public Accountants

T mmy Shealy CPA

David Morales CPA
Jury D. Spence CPA

Professional Associates d Senior Advisor:
Peggy Sidler CPA

Reny Morales CPA
Ryan Tohnston

David Notividad
Dudley cow/and CPA

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Trustees
Agua Dulce Independent School District
P.D. Box 250
Agua Dulce, Texas 78330-0250

Members of the Board of Trustees:

Compliance ance
We have audited the compliance of Agua Dulce Independent School District with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Office, of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
August 31, 2008. Agua Dulce Independent School District's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of Agua Dulce Independent School District's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on Ague Dulce Independent School District's compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Agua Dulce
Independent School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Agua Dulce Independent School District's
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Ague Dulce Independent School District complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
August 31, 2008.

5934 S. Staples. Suite 201 Corpus Christi, Texas 78413
Phone: (361) 993-1000 Fax: (361) 991-2880 www.00wIand-cna.com

Members of the American Institute and Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants
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internal Control OverCompllrice
The management of Agua Dulce Independent School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regurations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Agua Dulce Independent
School District's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Agua
Dulce Independent School District's internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results In more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we considered to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, the Board
of Trustees, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectful sub itte ,

Gowland, Strealy, Morales 8" Co., PLLC

January 3, 2008
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Unqualified

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported

Uiqijalified

Yes X No

AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

A. Summaryof Auditor's

1. Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

One or more material weaknesses identified?

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

2. Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

One or more material weaknesses identified?

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.287 21st Century Community Learning Centers
84.357 Reading First

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

S. Fins cin al Statement Findings

NIA

C. Federal Bward Findings and Questioned Costs

NIA
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During the current
year we did not see N/A
any excesses in
these areas.

The District still
does not document
the amount used, but
continues to charge
the amount budgeted
to the program.

The District plans to record
the mileage used in the 21st
Century Grant to determine
the amount of gasoline used.

AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006

Managements Explanation
Current Status If Not ImplementedFinding/Recommendation

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

2007-1
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Ramirez Independent School Distirict a member
district participating in a Shared Service
Arrangement with Ague Dulce Independent School
District purchased three laptop computers for
$3,755 which were not included in the approved
budget. It appears there was also a hotel charge
by Ramirez that exceeded the TEA maximum
allotment of $85 per day. There was also one
reimbursement check for hotel receipts and airline
ticket that did not have adequate support.

The 21st Centruy Grant allows for the purchase of
gasoline. Although gasoline was obviously used in
the Grant, the District did not adequately document
the amount used.

We suggest in the future, the District • document the
amount of gasoline used in the Grant. The District
might also consider using mileage instead of the
cost of gasoline used. The mileage would be much
easier to document.

2007-2
State Compliance - Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations

The Districts Budget Comparison Schedules reflect During the current
several instances of expenditures over year the District did NIA
appropriations. State law requires that a district not have any
adopt a budget and amend it as necessary unfavorable budget
throughout the year. We recommend that the variances
District reivew its policies and procedures over the
budget process and implement such steps as
necessary to ensure that budget amendments are
made in a timely manner.



AGUA DIJLCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST31, 2008

NONE - NIA
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT K-1

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

(1) (2) (2A) (3)

Data Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-•Th rough
Control Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying Federal
Codes P rogram Title Number Number, Expenditures

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Th rough State Depa rtment of Education:

211 ESEA Title I Part A - Improving Basic Programs 84.01 DA 08610101178901 98,983
Total CFDA Number 84.01 OA 98,983

244 SSA Vocational Education - Basic Grant 84.048 08420006178901 36,906

265 Title IV Part B21st Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 086950017110001 245,614
265 SSA 21st Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 086950017110001 691,925

Total CFDA Number 84.287 937,539

269 Title V. Part A - Innovative Programs 84.298 08685001178901 867

262 Title It Part D Enhancing Education Through Technology 84.318 08630001178901 3,182

201 Reading First 84.357 086455017110002 133,977
261 SSA Reading First 84.357 086455017110002 234,974

Total CFDA Number 84.357 368,951

255 ESEA 77tMe II Part A - Teacher & Principal Training & Recruiting 84.367A 08694501178901 26,567
270 Small Rural Achievement Program 84.367A 5358A081 780 15,961

Total CFDA Number 84.367A 42,628
Total Passed Through State Department of Education 1,489,055
Total U. S. Depa rtment of Education 1,489,055

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through State Department of Education:

178-901 Food Dist ribution 10.550 178-901 7,119

240 School Breakfast Program * 10.553 71400801 11,471

240 National School Lunch Program • 10.555 71300801 66,926
Total Passed Through State Department of Education 85,515
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 85,515

.̂-G: ... ;,•,^;^4 ^r.,;:^:U•t.:^: ::^r-r^>,y,; :. '4':Cs.,:nr-.:_-r..; • ^,,;zr^ ,, , •q ,;.;:.::1 ..:•-^.,•.,., ,n;• ,,^y ^' S ^^^ ^ 3i I ^ T^^7^^ 5'4;+Si
rr^ J ;C; a,6cr c y;^ :.Rh:: u^rr 7?.a 	. •

S.. .`? .''"r:?.'-r:in ^
4.:i :w^. :a• ... •: 5 ^.

4rrrr..v?-^ w f a.r...ri ^lr.`l^.c-.'"J^̂ ;..•r...}^•..--.-.-,-v^'a.,.+r'ti^^{i.'r7i.rv-S..}.r^°^^C:C?•G,r.^rv.4^+..i.3^v.3^s•."rTC A
r.t.•r:CC.h: ^s.'{iry.^,. ., .._. ... -.^'s.

* indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-1 33 Compliance Supplement

The accompanying notes are an integral part of th is schedule.
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AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008

Basis QLresentaton

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Agua
Dulce Independent School District and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
AUDITS OF STATES, LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, AND NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
general purpose financial statements.
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EXHIBIT K-2
AGUA DULCE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED RESPONSES TO SELECTED SCHOOL FIRST INDICA TORS
AS OFAUGUST31, 2008

Data
Control
Codes Responses

SF2 Were there any disclosures in the Annual Financial Report and/or
other sources of information concerning default on bonded
indebtedness obligations? No

SF4 Did the district receive a clean audit? - Was there an unqualified
opinion in the Annual Financial Report? Yes

SF5 Did the Annual Financial Report disclose any instances of material
weaknesses in internal controls? No

5F9 Was there any disclosure In the Annual Financial Report of material
noncompliance? No

SF10 What was the total accumulated accretion on capital appreciation
bonds included In the government-wide financial statements at
fiscal year-end? $ 150,847

[•y:'




